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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL. APPEARANCE

Red Bank Plantation at the time of its construction 
was ^rienjted east (front) and west (.rear) , with the 
present front being the north side of the house. The 
building is two full stories high, of brick construction 
and painted wliite. With the exception "of the two story 
wood portico which originally graced the front of the 
house, the simplicity of line, fenestration, roof 
treatment and floor plan are reflective of early 
Georgian architecture in the middle colonies/The 
portico was removed by the Phillips family and the house 
as~~~It exj_ S £S today represents several alterations. 
The Fede^l style, pprch with balustrade and raised 
foundation was added in 192/. Its off-center place­ 
ment is due to the fact"'thatT it is positioned in such 
a way as to utilize the existing window opening. The 
lower portion of the addition to the original rear 
of the house was done in 1937 and the upper room was 
added in 194#. Both rooms are entered through existing 
doorways. <&!! windows are six light sash with exterior 
louvered shutters and lintels above. There is a 
transom over the main entrance and a screen door has 
been added.

The house has an abundance of windows. As was 
the custom in Georgian homes, there are nine windows 
and a doorway on the front and rear of the Tiouse^ 
However, on the end walls which were usually pierced 
only four times or not at all, there are eight openings. 
The house is built on heavy hand-hewn timbers and 
conforms to the four-pen plan on the interior. There 
is a wide hall running each way creating four square 
rooms on each floor. The walls are 16 inches thick 
and each room, exclusive of additions, has a fireplace. 
The heart pine flooring is original as are many of the 
glass window panes.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Through the history of Red Bank Plantation can 
be traced much of the development of South Jacksonville* 
Florida was a wilderness when Red Banks was born out 
of a 450-acre Spanish grant. As early as 1793, the 
land was surveyed by Don Pedro Marrot and filed with 
the Keeper of the Archives of East Florida under the 
name Red Banks. At the time of this survey the land 
was inhabited by one Francis Flora and his family. 
On November 16, 1799, William Craig, who had gained 
title to the land from Flora, applied for and obtained 
a concession from Governor White. In March of 1815, 
Governor Kindelan gave Craig full and perfect title 
to the land. During the next 33 years, Red Banks was 
in the possession of three of Jacksonville's most 
prominent men. William Craig sold the land to Isaiah 
C. Hart, one of the founders of Jacksonville and father 
of Florida's tenth governor. In 1830, Hart sold the 
land to Issac Hendricks, for whom one of the main ave­ 
nues in South Jacksonville is named. In 1848 Hendricks' 
heirs sold the land to Albert Galla£irf' Phillips, formerly 
a sheriff of Duval County. It wasv^Lilli£s* %•§ who built 
the house in 1854 of bricks made right on the plantation. 
The house and land" remained in the Phillip's family until 
after the Civil War when finances made it difficult to 
keep up the plantation. It was sold to Professor Hiram 
H. Palmer, Superintendent of Public Instruction for 
Duval County. In 1^*4 a real estate company purchased 
the land and began a sub-division known as Colonial Manor. 
Red Banks was sold to the T.H. Ellingtons in 1937 with 
the stipulation that they would purchase the lots to 
either side of the house and restore the building. At 
this time most of the alterations in the house were made. 
The present owners, the Edwin M. Clarkes, purchased it 
in 1941 and have made only minor alterations.

Since the earliest Spanish surveys there has been a 
defined area known as Red Banks. For most of its history it 
has been a working plantation whose owners have played a 
significant role in the growth of South Jacksonville.
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